ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 19, 2014
1:32 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Coghill, Chair
Senator Lesil McQuire, Vice Chair
Senator Fred Dyson

Senat or Donald d son

Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 180
"An Act relating to the conposition, powers, and duties of the

Al aska Police Standards Council; and requiring agencies that are
regulated by the Alaska Police Standards Council to provide
certain information about the council to persons who file a

conplaint about the conduct of a police officer, probation
officer, parole officer, nmunicipal correctional officer, or
correctional officer."

- HEARD & HELD

COWM TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO 292(JUD)

"An Act nmaking corrective anendnents to the Alaska Statutes as
recommended by the revisor of statutes; and providing for an
effective date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
SENATE BILL NO. 176
"An Act relating to the regulation of firearns and knives by the
Uni versity of Al aska."
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 180
SHORT TI TLE: POLI CE STANDARDS COUNCI L

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 19, 2014



SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MOGUI RE

02/ 19/ 14 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 19/ 14 (S) JUD
03/ 19/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

BILL: SB 176
SHORT TITLE. REG OF FI REARMS/ KNI VES BY UNI VERSI TY
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) COGHI LL

02/ 14/ 14 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 14/ 14 (S) JUD

03/ 03/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 03/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 03/ 14 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 05/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 05/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 05/ 14 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 10/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 10/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 10/ 14 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 14/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 17/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 17/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 17/ 14 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

W TNESS REG STER

NANCY MEANS, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 180.

NORMAN MEANS, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in SB 180.

KELLY ALZAHARNA, Executive Director

Al aska Police Standards Counci l

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 180

JOHN SKI DMORE, Director

Crimnal Division

Legal Services Section

Departnent of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 180.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 19, 2014



CHAD HUTCHI SON, St af f

Senat or John Coghi |l |

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented Version Y of SB 176 on behal f of
t he sponsor.

HANS RODVI CK, Intern

Senat or John Coghi |l |

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information related to SB 176 on
behal f of the sponsor.

PATRI CK GAMBLE, Presi dent

University of Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 176.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:32:18 PM

CHAIR JOHAN COGH LL called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:32 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators McCQuire, Dyson, and Chair Coghill.

SB 180- POLI CE_STANDARDS COUNCI L

1:34:16 PM
CHAI R COGHI LL announced the consideration of SB 180. "An Act
relating to the conposition, powers, and duties of the Al aska

Police Standards Council; and requiring agencies that are
regulated by the Alaska Police Standards Council to provide
certain information about the council to persons who file a

conplaint about the conduct of a police officer, probation
officer, parole officer, nmunicipal correctional officer, or
correctional officer." This was the first hearing.

1:34: 20 PM
SENATOR MCGUI RE, sponsor of SB 180, introduced the bill speaking
to the foll ow ng sponsor statenent:

Wth ny introduction of SB 180, it is ny hope that no

other Alaskan is put in a position where they feel
victimzed and wthout recourse when a possible

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 19, 2014



i nproper use or abuse of authority by an officer
occurs within our law enforcenent system “Nancy’s
Law’ was inspired by the heart-wenching story of a
young Al askan naned Nancy who found herself in just
that type of unfortunate and potentially life-altering
si tuation.

In order to ensure the public has a voice and proper
advocacy in the process, this bill will increase the
nunber of public nmenbers of the Al aska Police
Standards Council (APSC) and stipulates that those
nmenbers may not have previous worked for a nenber
agency. In addition, this nmeasure establishes a
procedure for the council to process conplaints and
will require nenber agencies to inform conplainants of
their rights and protections through the APSC.
Finally, this measure wll also give the Al aska Police
St andards Council the ability to suspend a certificate
when an officer has clearly done sonething that
requires action, but doesn't necessarily warrant
revocati on.

Law enforcenment is a very challenging and necessary
duty. We are blessed to have a phenonenal majority of
hard working officers in our state and I comend their
service. But the public trust and confidence in these
agencies is equally as necessary and inportant for
these agencies to acconplish their mssions. SB 180
provi des additional safeguards for the public while
hel ping to ensure bad actions and actors are subject
to added scrutiny, including potential suspension
and/or renoval, by a stronger APSC with greater public
representati on.

1:40:19 PM
Senator O son joined the conmttee.

1:40:49 PM

NANCY MEANS, representing herself, Anchorage, Alaska, related
her personal story. She said that three years ago she and three
of her high school friends went shopping in Anchorage on Bl ack
Friday. They were headed honme at about 3:00 a.m when her van
broke down on the corner of C Street and Tudor Road. A police
officer arrived on the scene and when the van wouldn't start he
hel ped push it out of the intersection.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 19, 2014



She related that the officer cane back to the van and requested
her Ilicense and registration and then asked for her phone
nunber. She said she respectfully declined to give him her phone
nunber. Then, the officer began to act very strange and he
demanded the identification of her three friends. She inforned
the friends that they were not required by law to provide their
identification and they didn't. At this point, the officer
seened flustered and returned to his car. She said she called
her father because she felt |ike sonething strange was goi ng on.

M5. MEANS said that within a few mnutes the first officer
returned to the van acconpanied by a fermale officer. They asked
her to step out of the car. She did so and was searched by the
mal e police officer. She said she began to feel terrified. He
then walked away from the van and requested that she walk
towards him At this point she told him she refused to answer
any nore questions and would not consent to any nore searches
and wanted her |lawyer. He then placed her under arrest for DU

1:45: 00 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSEKI j oi ned the conmitt ee.

CHAI R COCGHI LL sunmari zed Ms. Means' story so far.

M5. MEANS continued to say that at this point the officer
qui ckly grabbed her arnms and placed her under arrest. She said
it took her conpletely by surprise. The fermale officer then
began to yell at her and said she would place her on the ground
if she did not conply.

M5. MEANS said she |ooked over at her friends' horrified
expressions and told them to call her dad. The fermale officer
|l ed her back to the police car, searched her again, and placed
her in the back of the vehicle. The officer then turned around
from the front seat and said, "Wy are you such an indecent
human being that you can't answer our questions?" M. Means said
she sat silently and said nothing. Then, the officer said, "Wat
kind of drugs are you on that are making you act this way?" M.
Means said she still sat silently. Realizing her defenseless
situation, she recalled the Anthony Rawlins case nine nonths
prior where six wonen were abused and raped by a police officer.
She began to nentally prepare herself to encounter a simlar
situation.

M5. MEANS said the officer drove her to the police station and

booked her. The officer there tested her bl ood al cohol content,
whi ch was 0. 000, and said he wi shed he could "un-arrest"” her.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 19, 2014



She said, while this was going on, her three friends were stil
stranded at twenty below zero in the mddle of Anchorage. The
mal e officer had them get out of the van and told them to wal k
across the street and stay there until their parents arrived
However, they were all mnors and the officer was required to
stay with themuntil their parents arrived, but he left.

She said the officer at the jail took her to her parents' office
in Anchorage and her friends arrived shortly after. The van was
i mpounded for a DU . She said they tried to get the van back for
a nonth and the city tried to charge $800 to get the van out of
i mpound.

She said she hired an attorney to appear in court for her
because she had to go back to college. The case was di sm ssed.
She said she has tried nultiple tines to have her record seal ed
because it shows as an arrest on CourtView. She wants to apply
to graduate schools, which look at court records. Having an
arrest record is a blem sh on her character and was a detrinent
during three job interviews.

She concluded that she did nothing wong and asserted her
rights, but the police officers had conplete disregard for her
rights. She noted when she approached the Al aska Police
St andards Council with a certified letter, they did not respond,
nor take any action. She voiced concern about the lack of
response.

1:51: 07 PM

CHAIR COGH LL thanked Ms. Means and expressed hope that her
story would prevent the sanme thing from happening to soneone
el se.

SENATOR DYSON said he used to be able to say that Al aska has
"clean cops" and he can't do that anynore. He advised that a
bill he introduced this year just passed the Finance Conmittee
and wi |l address Ms. Means' issue.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  expressed synpathy and asked if she
contacted assenbly nenbers or the mayor's office or filed a
| awsui t .

M5. MEANS said she is in the process of a lawsuit against the
Muni ci pality of Anchorage. She had requested that they admt
there was no probable cause for arrest and seal the record, but
they refused saying, because she was arrested, there nust have

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 19, 2014



been probable cause. She noted the hearing officer determ ned
t here was not probable cause to seize her vehicle.

1:54:20 PM

NORMAN MEANS, representing hi nsel f, Anchor age, Al aska,
expl ai ned, as Ms. Means' father, he filed a conplaint about the
illegal inmpounding of his van and after several nonths he was
told his conplaint was sustained. He wasn't satisfied with the
response and found there is no agency to handl e conpl ai nts about
civil liberty violations by a |law enforcenent officer against
private citizens except the Al aska Police Standards Council. He
said it's inportant that citizens can bring concerns to this
council if they have a serious conplaint. He suggested |istening
to the incident recordings because they're shocking when a young
wonman is only politely asserting her rights.

CHAIR COGHI LL noted that Kelly Al zaharna and John Skidnore were
avai |l abl e for questions.

SENATOR DYSON said he'd like to hear from the Alaska Police
Standards Council. He recapped M. Means' testinony that she
filed a conplaint and didn't hear back from the Al aska Police
St andar ds Counci | .

KELLY ALZAHARNA, Executive Director, Al aska Police Standards
Council, Juneau, Al aska, answered questions related to SB 180
She explained that she was not working at the Council at the
time of the incident. Wien the matter was first brought to her
attention she asked to receive a copy of the letter. She said
she received the letter and has been dealing with the concern
si nce then.

SENATOR DYSON asked if there was a record of the receipt of that
letter.

MS. ALZAHARNA said no. She said she was told about it, |ooked
for it, and found no record of it.

SENATOR DYSON noted the letter was sent in witing and said that

is problematic. He asked what the process is after a conplaint
i s received.

M5. ALZAHARNA expl ained that she contacts the conplainant and
then follows up on the inquiry. The process used is determ ned
by the nature of the conplaint.

2:01: 39 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 19, 2014



SENATOR DYSON asked if protocols require notifying the officer
and their bargaining unit when an investigati on goes forward.

MS. ALZAHARNA sai d no.

SENATOR DYSON asked, if the conplaint does neet the mninmm
standard that warrants an investigation, at what point is the
of ficer notified.

M5. ALZAHARNA explained the process she follows. |[If the
allegation is determned to be true and the msconduct falls
bel ow t he mi ni mum standards, the officer is formally notified of
the allegation. The officer then has 15 days to respond. They
have two options: surrender their certificate or file a notice
of defense, a desire for a hearing following the Admi nistrative
Procedures Act. They can have representation. There is no need
to notify their departnent, but the departnent generally knows.

CHAIR COGHI LL voiced concern when things aren't done in the
light of day and there are internal conflicts of interest. He
asked where accountability lies if it's not transparent to the
publi c.

2: 05: 34 PM

JOHN SKIDMORE, Director, GCrimnal Division, Legal Services
Secti on, Depart ment of Law, Anchor age, Al aska, answer ed
guestions related to SB 180. He requested nore information about
what Chair Coghill considers internal conflicts of interest.

CHAIR COGHILL clarified it is when it appears that "police are
investigating police;" from a public perspective it appears to
be behind a veil. He inquired what accountability neasures are
in place.

MR. SKI DMORE expl ai ned that the executive director of the Police
Standards Council |ooks into the conplaint and decides which
cases should nove forward. The Council, as a whole, used to nake
that decision, but cases dragged out much too |ong under that
process. As to accountability, the concern for transparency is
valid. He suggested contacting other nenbers of the Council.
Until a formal conplaint is filed, the matter is a personnel
matter and not public record. The bill doesn't change that. It
adds two public nenbers and prevents the Governor from
appointing individuals that may have experience in |aw
enf or cenment .

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 19, 2014



CHAIR COGHI LL said he understands the efficiency of having the
executive director nmke the decisions; however, it could also
thwart the process.

MR. SKIDMORE agreed. He noted the |ast executive director was
not with the Council very | ong.

2:10: 24 PM

SENATOR DYSON said he, too, could see that the record should be
confidential initially. He described a situation denonstrating
confidentiality and questioned at what point the Police
St andar ds process shoul d be insert ed.

MR. SKIDMORE said when an officer resigns, in lieu of

term nati on, or is ternminated from a police departnent,
regul ations require that agency to notify the Police Standards
Council. The Council then has the ability to review and

determne whether or not that officer should have their
certificate revoked. The breakdown is when the agencies don't do
what is required or don't contract the Council when they want to
hire sonmeone. He noted that the Council is review ng regul ations
to address that problem

2:13: 06 PM

SENATOR MCQUI RE clarified what the bill would do differently. It
woul d provide that the Council has a |legal obligation to respond
to the conpl ai nant about their rights and to neet to review the
conplainant's request, not Jleaving it up to the executive
director to decide.

She asked how Nancy's conplaint is being handled currently.

MR. SKIDMORE stated that the Council is under confidentiality
st andar ds.

SENATOR MCQUI RE asked for assurance that the Council is working
on it.

MR. SKIDMORE replied that Ms. Meade's case is being | ooked at.

SENATOR DYSON asked if the Council is out of the loop on an
agency's suspensi on deci si ons.

MR. SKIDMORE said unless the agency contacts the Council, they
won' t know what decision is nade.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- March 19, 2014



SENATOR DYSON asked how the Council would know about a past
conpl aint regarding an officer.

MR. SKIDMORE repeated that unless the agency contacts the
Council, they are not privy to agency hires. Agencies are
required to <contact the Council when there has been a
term nation or resignation in |ieu of term nation.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the admnistration and Council
supports or opposes the bill.

2:18:26 PM
MR. SKIDMORE said the Council voted unaninmusly to oppose the
bill. He noted the Al aska Police Oficers Association also

opposes the bill.

CHAIR COGHILL said he didn't intend to nove the bill. He asked
M. Skidmore to get the Council's recomendations to the
conm ttee.

2:19: 29 PM
CHAI R COGHI LL hel d SB 180 in comm ttee for further
consi derati on.

SB 176- REG OF FI REARMS/ KNI VES BY UNI VERSI TY

2:19: 50 PM

CHAI R COGHI LL announced the consideration of SB 176. "An Act
relating to the regulation of firearms and knives by the
University of Alaska." He said it was the fourth hearing of the

bill. He noted the proposed commttee substitute (CS), Version
Y.
2:20:48 PM

SENATOR MCGQUIRE nmoved to adopt CS for SB 176, |abeled 28-
LS1385\Y, as the working docunent.

CHAI R COCGHI LL obj ected for purposes of an expl anation.

2:21:50 PM

CHAD HUTCH SON, Staff, Senator John Coghill, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, presented Version Y of SB 176 on
behal f of the sponsor. He explained that Version Y focuses on
concealed carry. He cited an article called "Despite Policy,
Weapons Still Appear on University Canpus" that quotes a
security officer on the UAF canpus. In 1995 the UA Board of
Regents established a policy that does not allow anyone to carry

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- March 19, 2014



conceal ed guns, knives, and explosives on the wuniversity
property, inside university buildings and classroons off canpus,
or at university-sanctioned events. But, Oficer MGee says that
Al aska's conceal and carry |laws may keep him from enforcing that
policy. He said, "As the police chief, and as a resident here in
the state of Alaska, | think there's probably a greater nunber
of firearms on canpus than any of us really know about; it's
just that these people aren't using their firearns to commt
crimnal acts.”

MR, HUTCHI NSON said this denonstrates three things: there are
already firearnms on canpus, clarity, as it relates to conceal ed
carry, is necessary, and the current policy of UA does not work.
He opined that the CS strikes a balance between individual
rights to keep and bear arnms and the individual rights to
privacy. It constitutes a reasonable conpron se between concerns
of university students, safety in the schools, and the
fundamental rights of individuals who have guns on canpus.

He stated that the fundanmental principal of the bill is that the
university may not restrict concealed carry. There are certain
restrictions that relate to weapons m sconduct. He provided a
sanple of the restrictions. As a conpromse, the bill now
i ncludes the use of an approved | ock box for the weapons and a
permtting process is required.

2:29: 02 PM

HANS RODVI CK, I ntern, Senator John Coghill, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, presented information related to SB
176 on behalf of the sponsor. He explained the permtting
process of obtaining an Alaska concealed handgun permt. He
shared the history of the conceal ed handgun permt. He listed
who could, and could not, carry a conceal ed handgun.

2:31: 32 PM

He sunmarized the requirenents to carry a conceal ed handgun. He
di scussed the required conpetency class. It tests know edge of
Al aska | aws, sel f-defense concepts, responsi bl e use, and
physi cal conpetence with a handgun. A person nmust go to the
Departnment of Public Safety and pay for the license and submt
fingerprints and a digital photo that was taken within 30 days.
He opined that these rigorous requirenents to obtain a permt
strike a balance of public safety and |awful citizens exercising
their fundanental rights. He stated that statistics show that
t hese individuals will be lawmful and safe.

2: 35: 08 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 19, 2014



SENATOR MCGUI RE asked how the university received the conmmttee
substitute. She submitted that Version Y is well-crafted and
provi des nore safety assurances.

MR RODVICK deferred to M. Hutchison

MR. HUTCHI SON said he's conferred with the legislative liaison
for the university system and the attorney who drafted the | egal
opinion of the first version of the bill. He said President
Ganble would disclose the results of the University Board of
Regent's executive session

CHAIR COGH LL said he assured President Ganble that he was
taking this |l egislation seriously.

2:37:33 PM
SENATOR DYSON strongly suggested fleshing out the definition of
"l ock box." He asked if the university regul ates pocket knives.

MR. HUCHI SON agreed to the conversation about a definition of
t he | ock box.

CHAI R COGHI LL expected to find a solution to this bill by Mnday
or not at all this year.

SENATOR MCGUI RE asked how | egalization of the use of marijuana
interfaces with the federal requirenent of attesting to not
being addicted to a controll ed substance.

MR. HUTCHI SON agreed there is an apparent conflict.
CHAI R COGHI LL opened public testinony.

2:41: 53 PM

PATRI CK GAMBLE, President, University of Alaska, Anchorage,
Al aska, answered questions related to SB 176. He nmi ntai ned that
nost of the discussion, including the recent presentation, has
m ssed the point of the university's concern. The focus is no
| onger on fundanental rights of the individual and now deals
with a conpronmise. He stressed that the Board has not changed
its position and continues to believe that board policy has been
effective.

He terned the dilenmmas "l egal and operational” The |egal dilemma
is that there are excepted gun carry areas in the state under
state law. The question has to be why those areas were excepted
- why have they been taken out of those fundanental rights. The

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 19, 2014



answer is risk and safety. The Suprene Court determ ned that
states could nake exceptions and Al aska did. He concluded that
Board policy is based on those exceptions. He further described
the dilemma of trying to nmap the state law with its concerns,
over onto a university comunity, which has many of the exact
same conditions that are listed in the state's exceptions, such
as "K - 12 students"” and "around a place serving liquor” and "in
a residence without the perm ssion of the chief resident."”

He enphasized that the bill creates unintended consequences that
are real world, operational, actions and responsibilities, and
liabilities, that the university is uniquely responsible for.

He discussed the fiscal note which contains a |ist of
operational provisions that the university would have to put
into place in order to get around the exceptions on canpus. He
opined it would be costly, as reflected in the fiscal note. The
nunber in the fiscal note was taken from the cost of the
University of ldaho's operational plan, a single canpus.

2:47:27 PM

PRESI DENT GAMBLE di scussed risk and why there are exceptions to
areas where guns can be carried. He stated that the university
does not deal in hypothetical scenarios, but in probabilities
due to being accountable and liable. The university has a risk
assessment system which determnes a value for risk. He said the
"state of play" today is that the canpus is 24 tinmes safer from
violence in terns of nurder and assault with intent to kill or
mai mthan on city streets in Al aska.

He reported only four gun incidents where there was discipline
involved at the University of Alaska in the |last three years. In
terms of risk, the UA canpus is one of the safest places to be
right now. Increasing the nunber of weapons increases the
probability of accidents. He referred to hundreds of letters
from donors, faculty, and students, in opposition to the bill
who say they are not going to stay in a public school that has
this lawin its current, as-witten state.

He said in his experience, nost accidents in the mlitary were
self-induced and the nore weapons, the nore incidents. He
concluded that the bill wll not make the canpus safer and he
has evidence that there is a downside to the bill

2:52: 02 PM

He concluded that the bill is a noving target and that isn't
i npressive. Wth sone pushback there was an effort to conprom se

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- March 19, 2014



rights just to get a bill passed. The Board policy |ooks good
and they are satisfied with it in its current form H's said his
assessnment is that the probability and liability of what is
currently in place are nicely balanced. This bill doesn't
enhance that.

2:54: 02 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said his perspective is that this is a
constitutional issue. In the future he'd like to hear from | egal
schol ars on the issue.

CHAIR COGHI LL said he agrees. He doesn't believe that citizens
check their rights at the university door. He said he is willing
to work on the safety issues.

PRESI DENT GAMBLE said it has been a good hearing on the bill
He said he supports the dialog with constitutional scholars.

CHAI R COGHI LL concluded that President Ganble has to manage the
canpus from a legal and a practical perspective. He said he has
to look at the individuals in Alaska and ask about <citizen
rights.

CHAlI R COGHI LL hel d SB 176 in conmi ttee f or further
consi derati on.

2:58:12 PM

There being no further business to come before the commttee
Chair Coghill adjourned the Senate Judiciary Standing Conmmittee
neeting at 2:58 p.m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 19, 2014



